

Belvoir Park Golf Club Rules 2019 – 25 October 2019

Name of Club

- 1** The name of the Club shall be “Belvoir Park Golf Club”

Objects of the Club

2

2.1 The objects of the Club are to provide the members (including their guests and visitors) with a golf course, Clubhouse, and associated facilities, and generally to further the interests of golf and to promote any other form of recreation the Board of Management (‘the Board’) may decide upon. The Club shall affiliate to the governing body for golf in Ireland.¹

2.2 The Club is a non-profit making organisation. All profit and surpluses will be used to maintain or improve the facilities of the Club. No profit or surplus will be distributed other than to another non-profit making body or to the members on winding up or dissolution of the Club, which is not subject to commercial influence.

2.3 The Club shall at all times take all reasonable steps to promote inclusivity and equality of opportunity and treatment, and shall respect and safeguard the wellbeing and the rights of its members, employees and visitors, irrespective of age, disability, gender, race, religious belief, sex or sexual orientation. Every member, employee and visitor shall at all times conduct themselves in a way that reflects these principles, together with any guidelines published by any organisation to which the Club is affiliated.

2.4 The Club shall at all times maintain the safety and welfare of children and young persons in sport through the creation and promotion of a safe environment which protects them from harm. The Club and every member, employee and visitor shall adhere to the Code of Ethics and Good Practice for Children’s Sport (as amended or revised from time to time).

¹ At the date of the commencement of these Rules it is intended that the governing body shall be Golf Ireland.

Management

3

3.1 The affairs of the Club shall be managed by the Board. The authority of the Board shall commence on *1st January 2021* when it shall assume the power and responsibilities previously exercised on behalf of the Club by the Council.

3.2 The membership of the Board shall comprise not less than *five* voting and not more than *twelve* members in total (who shall be known as Directors), and this shall include:

- the Chair
- the Finance Director
- the Male Captain
- the Female Captain, and
- up to eight other members of whom at least two shall be men and two women.

3.3 The Male Captain and the Female Captain, who are ex-officio Directors, shall not have a vote at Meetings of the Board.

3.4 If any vacancy amongst the Directors should occur during the year the Board shall have the power to appoint any member of the Club to fill the vacant position and to serve as a member of the Board until the next Annual General Meeting, but he/she may be re-elected or reappointed.

3.5 The Board shall have full power to act notwithstanding that a vacancy in its numbers exists.

Election of Directors

4

4.1 Other than the Male Captain and the Female Captain the first members of the Board shall be appointed by the Council.

4.2 Any Member of the following categories of membership shall be eligible to serve as a Director:

- 7 day members
- 6 day members
- 5 day members
- Senior 5 day members

4.3 The first Chair and Finance Director shall hold office for an initial term of one year and they shall then retire but shall be eligible for re-election. The second and any subsequent Chair and Finance Director shall be elected by the members and hold office in that capacity for a term of three years when they shall then retire.

A Male Vice-Captain and a Female Vice-Captain shall be elected at the respective Men's and Ladies' Annual General Meetings and shall hold that position for one year. Neither the Male Vice-Captain nor the Female Vice-Captain shall be ex officio Directors.

The duties and responsibilities of the Captains shall be as determined by the Board from time to time.

4.4 The Male Captain and Female Captain shall be ex-officio Directors who have been elected by members at the Annual General Meeting. The Male Captain and Female Captain shall hold office in that capacity for one year.

4.5 Subject to clauses 4.6 and 4.7 the remaining Directors shall be elected by the members and their appointment shall be for a term of three years when they shall then retire but, after an interval of at least 12 months, they shall be eligible for re-election.

4.6 One third of the remaining Directors (or the nearest number to one third) shall retire by rotation each year at the Annual General Meeting. The Directors to retire by rotation shall be those who have been longest in office. As between persons who have the same length of service those to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be decided by lot.

4.7 No member of the Board may serve for a total period exceeding six years (but prior membership of Council shall not be taken into account).

4.8 All candidates for appointment as Directors must be proposed and seconded and their names exhibited on the appropriate Club notice-board throughout the period of at least seven days immediately before the Annual General Meeting.

Decision Making by Directors

5

5.1 The Board shall meet as often as necessary and in any event at least six times per year. The quorum for Board meetings may be fixed from time to time by a decision of the Directors and unless otherwise fixed shall be five.

5.2 If the total number of Directors for the time being is less than the quorum required, the Directors must not take any decision other than a decision to appoint

further Directors, or to call a general meeting to enable the members to appoint further Directors.

5.3 A meeting of the Board may be called by the Chair. In addition, any three Directors may call a Board meeting.

5.4 A Board meeting must be called by at least seven days' notice, unless all the Directors agree, or urgent circumstances require shorter notice.

5.5 Notice of Board meetings must be given to all Directors and shall specify the place, day and time of the meeting, the general nature of the business to be transacted, and if it is anticipated that Directors participating in the meeting will not be in the same place, how it is proposed that they should communicate with each other during the meeting.

5.6 Notice of Board meetings need not be in writing and may be sent by electronic means to an address provided by the Director for that purpose.

5.7 Any decision of the Directors must be made by a majority of the Directors present and voting at a quorate Board meeting. The Directors may also act by a unanimous decision when all of the Directors confirm to each other by any means (including electronic communication) their agreement to a course of action to be taken by the Club. Such a decision may, but need not, take the form of a resolution in writing, copies of which have been signed by each Director or to which each Director has otherwise indicated agreement in writing.

5.8 The Chair, or in his/her absence another Director nominated by the Directors present, shall preside as chair of each Board meeting.

5.9 The Chair of a Board meeting shall have a casting vote (in addition to his/her own vote).

5.10 A Director shall cease to be a member of the Board:

- If he/she ceases to be within an eligible category of membership of the Club for appointment to the Board;
- upon notification of resignation;
- upon failure to attend three consecutive meetings of the Board without reasonable excuse and the Directors resolve that he/she be removed for this reason; or
- if a resolution is passed at a general meeting of the Club that he/she be removed provided the meeting has invited the views of the Director concerned and has considered the matter in light of such views.

Powers of the Board

6.

6.1 The Directors shall have power from time to time to make, repeal or alter such Bye-Laws as they may consider necessary for the well being of the Club, including the regulation of the game and playing of golf at the Club, provided they do not conflict with these Rules. Bye-Laws shall include any associated regulations, orders or directions made thereunder.

6.2 Bye-Laws shall be brought to the attention of members in such a manner as the Directors shall from time to time think fit. No member shall be absolved from compliance with such Bye-Laws by reason of not having received a copy, including any alteration, or otherwise having no notice of the Bye-Laws.

6.3 Bye-Laws made under this rule, and those in force at the date of adoption of these Rules, shall be binding on all members and remain in force unless and until altered or repealed by the Directors.

Delegation and Committees

6.4 The Directors may delegate any of their powers or functions to any Committee and may also delegate the implementation of their decisions or the day to day management of the affairs of the Club to any person or Committee. Any delegation by the Directors may be by such means, to such an extent, in relation to such matters, and on such terms and conditions as they think fit. The power to delegate shall include the power to revoke any delegation in whole or in part. The power to delegate shall not apply to the election or removal of anyone from membership of the Club.

6.5 The Directors may by power of attorney or otherwise appoint any person to be the agent of the Club for such purposes and on such conditions as they determine.

6.6 In the case of delegation to a committee;

- the resolution making such delegation must specify those who shall serve or be asked to serve on the committee (although the resolution may allow the committee to make co-options up to a specified number);
- the composition of any committee shall be entirely at the discretion of the Directors and may include one or more of their number;
- the deliberations of any committee must be reported regularly to the Board and every resolution or decision taken by a committee shall be reported promptly to the Board;

- the Directors may make such regulations and impose such terms and conditions and give such directions or mandates to any committee as they may from time to time think fit;
- no committee shall incur expenditure of liability on behalf of the Club except where authorised by the Directors or in accordance with a budget approved by the Directors.

Finance

6.7 The Board shall have control of the finances of the Club, power to borrow from the bank or other sources such monies as may be required for the expenses of the Club, or for any special project which is authorised at a general meeting of the members. It shall have power to engage, control and dismiss Club employees and to supply refreshments services and amenities and have all such administrative powers as may be necessary to carry out the objects of the Club in accordance with law and the rules of the Club.

Administrator

6.8 In the case of the delegation of day to day management of the Club to an administrator the delegated power shall be to administer the Club by implementing the policy and strategy adopted by and within a budget approved by the Directors; and the Directors shall provide any such administrator with a description of his/her role and the extent of his/her authority.

President

6.9 The Board shall nominate one or more members to be the President(s) of the Club and such member(s) shall be elected from amongst the members of the Club. A President, who shall hold office for a one year term, shall perform such duties and represent the Club in such manner as the Board may from time to time decide. A President shall not be a member of the Board but may be invited, and he/she may also request, to attend meetings of the Board (and any committees established by the Board). When a President is invited to attend a Board (or committee) meeting he/she shall receive a copy of the agenda for such meeting (including copies of documents relevant to his/her duties and obligations). A President shall have no vote at meetings of the Board (or committee) but may speak on all matters concerning his/her duties and functions.

Club Property and Trustees

7

7.1 The property of the Club shall be vested in three Trustees, in trust for the Members of the Club for the time being.

7.2 The Trustees shall be nominated by the Board and elected from amongst the members of the Club. They shall hold office for a period of three years but shall be eligible for re-election for one further period of three years unless the Club in general meeting shall have voted to remove them or any of them.

7.3 The Trustees shall not be members of the Board but may attend meetings of the Board. Trustees will be provided with copies of the minutes of Board (or committee) meetings, and when attending a Board (or committee) meeting shall receive a copy of the agenda for such meeting (including copies of documents relevant to their duties and obligations). Trustees shall have no vote at meetings of the Board (or committee) but may speak on all matters concerning their duties and obligations.

7.4 The Trustees must deal with the property of the Club as the Board may from time to time direct by resolution (of which an entry in the Minute Book shall be conclusive evidence).

7.5 The Trustees with the approval of the Board shall have the power to sell, exchange, partition, grant in fee farm, lease for any term (with or without a fine) mortgage, charge, grant rights over or otherwise deal with the whole or any part or parts of the Club property and to execute all documents necessary to effect such objects. The Trustees, and the person or persons, dealing with them shall be entitled upon production to them of a copy of the record of such resolution in the minute book of the Board purporting to be signed by the Chair for the time being of the Club or Chair of the meeting at which such resolution was passed, to assume that such a resolution was duly passed, that the person purporting to sign such a copy resolution as Chair of the Club or such meeting is in fact Chair of the Club or such meeting and that such purported copy is a true copy of such resolution. The person or persons dealing with the Trustees shall be entitled to assume that the persons in whom the legal estate in the property appears to be vested by the relevant documents of title are the Trustees of the Club, and are the persons entitled to assure the any property under this rule and shall pay the consideration monies to such persons whose receipts shall effectually discharge the payer therefrom and from being concerned to see to the application thereof.

7.6 Trustees acting in that capacity shall be indemnified against any risk and expense out of the property of the Club.

General Meetings of the Club

8.

8.1 General Meetings of the Club are the Annual General Meeting and any Special General Meeting.

8.2 The Annual General Meeting of the Club shall be held each year on such day and at such time and place as the Board shall decide.

8.3 Notice of the Annual General Meeting shall be posted on the Club Notice Board and sent to members by e-mail at least twenty eight days before the date of the meeting. A copy of the Annual Report, Financial Statements and Agenda shall be sent to members by e-mail at least fourteen days before the date of the meeting. Members wishing to have a printed copy of the Annual Report, Financial Statement and Agenda may request one from the Chair, not less than twenty one days before the date of the meeting.

8.4 The business of the Annual General Meeting shall be to receive the Board's Annual Report and the Financial Statements, the election of Directors, Auditors, the President(s) and Trustees (as required), the revision of rules (if required), and the transaction of any business that may arise.

8.5 Any member wishing to propose a resolution at the Annual General Meeting must deliver a copy of such resolution to the Chair at least twenty eight days prior to the date of the meeting.

8.6 A Special General Meeting of the Club may be called by the Board. The Board shall also call a Special General Meeting on receipt of a requisition delivered to the Club's General Office and marked for the attention of the Chair signed by at least sixty members stating the business to be brought forward.

8.7 At least ten days' notice of the holding of a Special General Meeting shall be given.

Attendance, Quorum and Voting at General Meetings

8.8 Any member other than a Junior Member may attend a General Meeting. Only Young Adults aged 22 and above, Senior 5 Day, 5, 6 & 7 day Members, Honorary Members and Special Ordinary Members may vote at such a meeting, at the appointed time, during the meeting. Any question requiring decision at a General Meeting may be put to the members entitled to vote and if a majority of such members so decide voting shall be by ballot. Votes by proxy shall not be allowed.

8.9 A quorum at a General Meeting shall consist of sixty members and if no quorum is present within thirty minutes of the time appointed the meeting shall stand adjourned until such date and time as the Board shall appoint.

Change of Rules

8.10 No existing rule may be revoked or amended and no new rule (including any alteration in the entrance fee or subscription payable by any category of member other than a temporary member) shall be adopted unless approved at a General Meeting of the Club. The notice of any such meeting shall detail the changes proposed to be made. Any Member wishing to put forward to the meeting any amendment to the proposals in the notice must at least seven days before the date of the meeting deliver to the Club's General Office and marked for the attention of the Chair a copy of the proposed amendment which must also be seconded by another Member entitled to vote.

Membership of the Club

9

9.1 The Club shall consist of such number of elected members as the Board may from time to time decide, including the following categories of membership but subject to the limits as to numbers as indicated :

9.2	<u>Category</u>	<u>Maximum Number Permitted</u>
	7 day members	500
	6 Day Members	350
	5 Day Members	
	(6 and 5 day membership shall be a combined total of 350, subject to a maximum of 150 5 day members)	
	Senior 5 Day Members	150
	Young Adults	75
	Junior Members	As fixed by the Board
	Country Members	50
	House Members	As fixed by the Board
	Senior House Members	As fixed by the Board
	Social Members	As fixed by the Board
	Corporate Members	As fixed by the Board
	Special Ordinary Members	15
	Senior Members	As fixed by the Board
	Honorary Members	As fixed by the Board
	Spousal/Partner	As fixed by the Board

9.3 The combined number of 5 Day, 6 Day and 7 Day members shall not exceed 875 in any event.

9.4 The conditions applicable to the categories of membership, including those applicable to a transfer between categories of membership, shall be as the Board may determine from time to time.

Election of Members (Other than Honorary Membership and Temporary Membership)

9.5 Each applicant for admission to membership (other than Honorary Members and Temporary Members) shall be proposed and seconded by two members, one of whom shall be a member of the Board. The name, address and occupation (if any) of the applicant, or such other information as the Board may require, and the name of his/her proposer and seconder shall be posted on the main notice-board in the Clubhouse throughout the period of seven days immediately before the date of the Board meeting at which his/her election is to be considered. The Board may accept or reject any such proposal by a majority vote. An unsuccessful applicant cannot be proposed again within twelve months from the date of such rejection. An interval of not less than two weeks shall elapse between the nomination and election of any member.

Admission to Membership (Other than Honorary Membership and Temporary Membership)

9.6 An applicant shall not be admitted to membership by the Board under this Rule until :

- a) The applicant has been notified in writing by the Chair of the offer of membership (at which time the applicant will also be furnished with a copy of the Rules of the Club and a request for payment of the entrance fee and annual subscription);
- b) The applicant has paid the entrance fee or such part as is required in the event that the applicant is entitled and elects to pay the entrance fee by instalments; and
- c) The applicant has paid the annual subscription or such part as is required in the event that the applicant is entitled to and elects to pay the entrance fee by instalments.

9.7 If, within one month of the date of notification by the Chair of the offer of membership, an applicant does not make payment of such entrance and /or subscription fees that are then due he/she will be deemed to have declined the offer

of membership unless the failure of the applicant is satisfactorily explained in writing to the Chair, within two months from the date of notification.

Honorary Members

9.8 The Board may elect as Honorary Members prominent golfers and persons who have rendered special service for the advancement of the game or to the Club or who are distinguished in public life, provided that such election shall be subject to confirmation by members at the next Annual General Meeting.

9.9 Honorary Membership may be conferred upon a recipient for life or such other period of time as may be proposed by the Board and determined by the members at the Annual General Meeting. Where a period of Honorary Membership has expired, the recipient shall be eligible for a further term of Honorary Membership in the event of such further resolution of the members at the Annual General Meeting. An Honorary Member shall be entitled to exercise their rights as an Honorary Member upon notification in writing by the Chair of his/her election as an Honorary Member.

9.10 The Board may elect as an Honorary Special House member a person who in its opinion may advance the reputation of the Club. The list of Honorary Special House Members will be subject to annual review by the Board and shall be approved by member annually at the Annual General Meeting. They shall be entitled to use all the facilities of the Club and may play golf on the course on such days and at such times as the Board may determine.

Addresses of Members (other than Temporary Members)

9.11 Each member (other than Temporary Members) shall notify the Chair of his/her address, or that of his/her agent. Such address shall be inserted in the register of members and all notices sent to such address shall be deemed to have been duly delivered at the time the notice would have been delivered in the ordinary course of post.

9.12 Each member (other than Temporary Members) shall notify the Chair of his/her personal contact details for the delivery and receipt of electronic communications.

Entrance Fees

10

10.1 Subject to Rule 8.10 the Board shall determine the entrance fees payable by the different categories of members. The Board may, in its discretion accept payment of an entrance fee by instalments over such period as it considers appropriate.

10.2 Any member wishing to upgrade from '5 Day' or '6 Day' to '7 Day' or from '5 Day' to '6 Day' at a reduced entrance fee, will be liable to pay the difference between the fee originally paid and the entrance fee of the new category they wish to move to at the time of application, should this be greater.

10.3 The Board may accept applications at a promotional entrance fee, calculated at one times the annual subscription, for up to an aggregate of 50 memberships for the 'Young Adult', Junior, '5 Day', '6 Day' and '7 Day' categories.

10.4 The Board shall have power to determine the nature and extent of any discount to be applied in circumstances where members of a family unit (which shall include but is not limited to parents and children who are living together) apply to become members.

10.5 Former members wishing to rejoin the Club must be elected in accordance with Rule 9.5 and the Entrance Fee payable will be the difference between the rate in being at the date of resignation and at the date of re-election, subject to the discretion of the Board to waive all or part of the amount due.

Annual Subscriptions

11

11.1 The annual subscriptions payable by the different categories of members shall be determined annually at the Annual General Meeting.

11.2 Annual subscriptions shall be due and payable in advance on the first day of January each year. Where an annual subscription remains unpaid at the end of January the amount thereof shall be increased by 10% per month or any part of a month. Any member whose subscription is one month in arrears cannot compete for any Club prize, or vote at any meeting. A Member whose subscription is unpaid on the first day of March shall cease to exercise the privileges of membership including the use of any amenities of the Club. He/she shall however, be liable for any entrance fee or subscription due and unpaid at that date.

Resignation of Membership

12 A member may at any time on or before the thirty first day of December by giving notice in writing to the Chair, resign his/her membership of the Club but he/she shall continue to be liable for any entrance fee or subscription due and unpaid at the date of his/her resignation.

Breach of Club Rules

13

13.1 The payment of the entrance fee, or the annual subscriptions, or the temporary membership fee, or the acceptance of honorary membership shall constitute an ongoing undertaking by each member to comply with the Rules and Bye-Laws of the Club.

13.2 The Board may investigate any alleged infringement of the Rules and Bye-Laws of the Club, which shall include any allegation that a member has behaved in an unseemly, unbecoming, discriminatory or offensive manner or is one whose conduct is considered by the Board to have been injurious to the reputation, well being or interests of the Club, or which is calculated or likely to bring the Club into disrepute.

13.3 The Board may delegate the investigation into any alleged infringement of the Rules and Bye-Laws of the Club to a committee and or a suitable qualified third party.

13.4 Subject to clause 13.5 the Board shall maintain and keep under review written procedures for the investigation of any alleged infringements of the Rules and Bye-Laws of the Club, and shall bring such procedures, including sanctions and the right of appeal, to the attention of the members from time to time and in such a manner as it considers appropriate. In addition, the Board shall provide a copy of the procedures to any member upon request.

13.5 The Disciplinary Procedures set out in Rule 35 of the Club Rules and which were in force immediately prior to the adoption of these Rules shall continue to apply until such times as the Board otherwise directs.

Temporary Members

14

14.1 The Board may permit golfers who are not members of the Club to play on the Course and shall fix the days on, and the hours during which such persons shall be entitled to play and the fees payable. Such persons shall be known as Temporary Members.

14.2 A Temporary Member shall, on payment of the appropriate fee, be issued with a temporary membership ticket and then become entitled to use the course and Clubhouse during the period for which such ticket has been issued. The name and address of each Temporary Member, and the name of the Club Member by whom he/she was introduced, where appropriate, shall be entered in the Temporary Member's book prior to commencing play.

14.3 The Board may specify a reduced fee for the use of the Course by a Temporary Member introduced by, and who plays in the company of, a Club member but it may, at its discretion, limit the number of occasions on which a Temporary Member may play on the Course at a reduced fee or otherwise.

14.4 A playing member of a recognised golf club may, with the agreement of the Board, become a Temporary Member for a period not exceeding six months on being proposed and seconded by two members, one of whom shall be a member of the Board and on payment of such fee as the Board may from time to time specify.

14.5 The Board may permit a Temporary Conference Day Membership to be allocated. Any such person(s) shall, on payment of the appropriate booking fee, be issued with a temporary membership ticket and become entitled to use the conference facilities and the clubhouse during the period for which such a ticket has been issued. The names and addresses of each such temporary conference day member shall be entered in the Temporary Member's book prior to commencement of the use of the facilities.

Bye Laws & Clubhouse

15 The Board may from time to time direct in Bye-Laws or otherwise, the times, terms and conditions under which the Clubhouse and Course may be used

Payment of Bills

16 All members shall discharge whatever expenses they incur before leaving the Clubhouse. The name of any member neglecting to comply with this rule shall be reported to Board who shall make application to him or her for immediate payment of any sum due to the Club. The ongoing failure to pay such expenses may give rise to an investigation under Rule 13.

Display of Notices

17 No notices or documents of any kind shall be displayed on Club property except by the authority and with the concurrence of the Chair or General Manager.

Protection of Club Property

18 A Member shall not, except with the express permission of the Chair or General Manager, remove from the Clubhouse any article, that is the property of the Club. Any member destroying, damaging or removing any property or equipment shall make immediate restoration to the satisfaction of Board and may be subject to an investigation under Rule 13

Rules of Golf

19 The game shall be played according to the Rules of Golf as fixed from time to time by the Royal & Ancient (through R&A Rules Limited) and adopted by the Club's recognised governing body. The Board may make local rules governing local conditions as permitted by the Rules of Golf.

Complaints

20 A member who wishes to make a complaint on any Club matter should do so in writing addressed to the Chair who, if unable to deal with same, shall refer it to the Board for a decision for attention as necessary. An employee of the Club may only be reprimanded by the Chair acting within the Disciplinary Procedures contained in the employee's terms and conditions of employment. Under no circumstances shall a member of the Club issue, or purport to issue, a reprimand to an employee.

Accounts

21 Correct accounts and books shall be kept showing the receipts, expenditure and financial accounts of the Club. The accounts shall be audited by an approved auditor in accordance with the law.

Recovery of Debts

22 The Finance Director shall have the power to sue for recovery of any debt due to the Club when directed by Board to do so, and the minutes of the meeting at which such direction was given shall be evidence of such authority. The Finance Director shall be indemnified by the Club against any liability for costs, damages or expenses incurred by him/her in the discharge of this function.

Intoxicating Liquor

23

23.1 No intoxicating liquor shall be supplied for consumption on the Club premises except during the hours permitted by law.

23.2 Intoxicating liquor supplied during the hours specified may be consumed between those hours or in the period of 30 minutes immediately following the closure of the bar on the day in question.

23.4 The Board at its sole discretion may shorten the hours specified in this Rule if it considers necessary or appropriate to do so.

23.5 In addition to the hours permitted under the legislation intoxicating liquor may be supplied in the Club premises during such hours and on such occasions as may be authorised by the District Commander of the PSNI for the sub-division in which the Club is situated.

23.6 Intoxicating liquor shall not be sold or supplied :

- a) to persons who are not members of the Club for consumption outside the premises of the Club;
- b) to any person under the age of eighteen years;
- c) to members of the Club for consumption outside the premises of the Club except where the liquor is supplied in such quantities and during such hours being hours within the permitted hours, and on such days as the officer in charge of the PSNI District for Northern Ireland sub-division in which the premises are situated may authorise in writing.

23.7 A statement printed in plain type of the hours during which intoxicating liquor may be supplied on the premises of the Club shall be exhibited in a conspicuous part of the Club premises.

23.8 No member of the Board and no manager or servant of the club shall have a personal interest in the supply of intoxicating liquor therein or in the profits arising from such supply.

Visitors to the Club

24

24.1 The same person, except where that person is a parent, husband, partner, wife or child of a member shall not be admitted as a visitor to the Club premises on more than twenty days in any period of twelve months.

24.2 A visitor shall immediately on his/her admission to the Club premises enter his/her name and address in a book which shall be kept for that purpose and which shall show the date of each visit. A member shall be responsible for his/her guest strictly observing the rules and shall not leave the premises before the guest.

24.3 A visitor to the Club premises shall not be supplied with intoxicating liquor in the Club premises unless upon the invitation and in the company of a member.

24.4 In the case of a team or other body of persons who are members of another Club (whether registered or not), Society or Organisation visiting the Club for the purpose of taking part in or in the organisation of or arrangements for any pastime, sport, game or recreation at the Club, it shall suffice for the purpose of this Rule for the Chair or General Manager or other Director of the Club to enter in the visitor's book the name of the Club, Society or Organisation and the number of such visitors without specifying their names and addresses and thereafter on the occasion of that visit intoxicating liquor may be supplied to such visitors at the request and in the presence of any Director of the Club and the admission of such visitors shall be disregarded for the purpose of this Rule.